
 
 

 
 

WCWCVB March 19, 2025 Board Meeting 
Granite Peak 

227200 Snowbird Ave 
Wausau, WI 54401 

In-Person Meeting and also available on Microsoft Teams 
Refreshments and lunch will be available  

Meeting starts at 11:30 A.M. 
 

CVB Mission and Vision Statements  
Mission Statement: CVB is a regional tourism organization providing resources, marketing, and leading 
strategic cooperation with other organizations. CVB fosters excellent visitor experiences, positioning our 
region as a destination community. 
 
CVB Vision Statement: CVB is a premiere tourism marketing organization developing the greater 
Wausau Region as an outstanding destination. 

 
Meeting Agenda 

 
1. Call To Order        Fisher 

 
2. Roll Call                      Patel 

 
3. Approval of January 22, 2025 Meeting Minutes   Fisher 

 
4. Approval of Financial Reports     Krahn 

a. Overview of the 2025 Budget for New Board Members 
 

5. Executive Director’s Report  & Marketing Update  White 
 

6. Discussion and Approval of Sports Authority Grant Applications  
a. 2025 Hmong Wausau Festival 
b. Kennedy Park Renovation  

 
 
 



7. New Business        Fisher 
a. Discussion and Approval of CVB By-Law Updates 
    (Update to Executive Committee to five members) 
b. Discussion of the Village of Rib Mountain’s letter of concerns 
 
 

8. Unfinished Business              Fisher 
a. Updates on Tourism Entity Contract with Village of Rothschild 
 

9. Committee Reports       Fisher 
 

10. Announcements or Requests      Fisher 
 
 

11. Next Meeting Date:       Fisher 

a. May 2025 – Late May for 2024 Audit Presentation 
 

12. Adjourn Meeting        Fisher 
 

Microsoft Teams Need help?  

Join the meeting now  
Meeting ID: 214 065 061 768  
Passcode: YL97rP7A  
 
Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who need materials in alternative format or other 
accommodation must write or call the WCWCVB contact person prior to the meeting. 
 

https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting?omkt=en-US
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YjI5ZmI4NmQtZmNmOS00Y2ViLWEyMjEtN2YyODBkNjkzZjA4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f8633ac8-3cd9-4a69-9078-0770ba16e673%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227980b84f-7af3-4336-8c6e-ef51ccf0b79c%22%7d


 

 

January 22, 2025 Board Meeting Minutes 
Granite Peak  

11:30 am 

Board Meeting called to order by Fisher.  Roll call taken by Patel. 

Present: Jamie Polley, Greg Fisher, Steve Krahn, Joan Joss, Al Opall, Tim Van De Yacht, Eric 
Johnson, Bob Lamovec, Jahn Martin, Marc Kettleson, Liz Wendt, Sean Wright, Nick Patel, Tim 
White, Jodi Maguire, Brenton Wildman, and Gao Her. 

Virtual: Mayor Doug Diny 

Absent: Hooshang Zeyghami 

Guest: Colin Benell and Dan Kubat with MC United Soccer 

Call for a motion to accept meeting minutes from December 18, 2024 made by Patel, second by 
Krahn, and approved by all. 

Sports Authority Grant Requests 

MC United – Badger State Games Spring Tournament 
Colin Benell and Dan Kubat from the MC United Soccer Club were in attendance and presented 
grant application.  Benell stated the tournament brings in over 900 athletes to Central 
Wisconsin over the course of three days.  Bolin stated there was roughly a $2,000 profit from 
the 2024 tournament.  Discussion on how impactful the event is to Central Wisconsin and how 
funds would be used.   
Van De Yacht made a motion to approve grant request in the amount of $10,000 if MC United 
would commit to 2025 & 2026 spring tournaments.  If commitment couldn’t be fulfilled, the 
$3,500 grant amount can be disbursed.  Maguire asked if MC United could apply for 2026 if 



they do commit to a two-year commitment and Van De Yacht stated yes.  Van De Yacht made 
the motion, Patel second the motion, approved by all. 
Bolin and Kubat stated they would need to take the information back to their board and will 
follow up with Maguire on the final decision.   
(Week of January 27th – Colin Bennell and Dan Kubat emailed Maguire and stated the MC 
United Board meet and agreed to the two year term with the $10,000 grant for 2025) 

Financial Reports 
Krahn gave a brief update on the financials by stating the CVB showed a profit of $91,000 for 
2024.  Krahn explained this is due to one staff member leaving in early spring with replacement 
coming in late summer into early fall along with the CVB not hiring a fifth member that was 
reflected in the budget for 2024.  White stated Krahn is always available to answer any 
questions that might come up especially for the new board members.  Polley suggested having 
a budget overview at the next meeting as an educational piece to help the new board members 
get familiarized.  All members agreed and the topic will be added to March’s agenda.  Krahn 
moved onto the Sports Authority and stated there was a $6,000 loss.  Krahn stated grant 
expense line was over due to the bid fees being submitted for the 2026 World Horseshoe 
Tournament.  Krahn shared a brief update on the restricted funds and how they do not 
correlate with budget. Van De Yacht stated the marketing expenditures were over 50,000 for 
the year and stated this was good to see with the amount of room tax revenue that was 
received.  Patel asked White what type of digital marketing the DMO has done or plan to do.  
White explained that the CVB did a couple of NBC OTT commercials for spring and fall.  White 
stated both campaigns had overall success and surpassed the overall impressions.  Maguire 
stated some of the overage in the marketing lines was the Blossom of Lights Ad Campaign.  
Maguire stated Monk Gardens received a JEM Grant in the amount of $29,662.50 with the full 
funding coming to the DMO to run target ads.  Revenue is reflected in 430 and expenses are in 
607. 

Call for a motion to accept the financial reports as printed by Fisher.  Motion to accept made by 
Van De Yacht second by Patel, approved by all. 

Update on 2026 World Horseshoe Tournament 
Maguire gave a brief background of the World Horseshoe Tournament and stated things are 
back on track.  Maguire stated she will be applying for the Wisconsin Economic Development 
grant called Opportunity Fund Program.  Maguire stated the Village of Weston’s Tourism 
Commission met on January 20th and agreed to submit a promissory note in the amount of 
$60,000 to $80,000 to use towards the matching fund category of the grant.  Maguire stated 
GTCC has been looking into different possibilities with the air conditioning and has found a 
funding source.  If all goes as planned, air conditioning or air exchangers would be put into 
place in the fall of 2025 and ready for 2026.  Maguire stated she will continue to keep everyone 
informed.  
Executive Director Report & Marketing Update 



White stated a 2025 Business Plan for the organization was included in the board packet and 
gave a brief overview of the goals and outcomes he would like to see for 2025.  White stated he 
would like to see the website optimized so it would be more user friendly.  One way of doing 
this would be to reduce the number of menu options.  White stated internally, the staff are 
meeting metrics and explained the team meets weekly.  White stated he is working on a 
podcast and will launch it soon.  Liz Wendt will be the co-host.  White is looking to record two a 
month and focuses on outdoor recreation, arts & culture, municipalities, and community 
stakeholders.  Equipment will be provided by Ryan Gallagher.  
White also shared Visit Wausau is leveraging with Tik Tok, working on co-op PR pieces, Sports 
Tourism and strengthening partnerships. White shared a webpage 
www.visitwausau.com/marketing and stated this would be a great resource to see all the 
marketing efforts for Visit Wausau.  White stated this page will continue to update as more 
resources come out.   
White stated the NFL Draft is around the corner; Visit Wausau will be providing bus shuttles to 
and from Green Bay for overnight visitors to the area.  White stated tickets are live, and visitors 
have been purchasing them.  White, also shared Tourism Week will be May 5-9, 2025, and the 
annual luncheon will be an evening event, more details to come.  

New Business 
Current terms for the President and Vice President have expired.  The Board of Directors had 
discussions on making the Executive Committee an odd number by adding another member.  
Wright stated some organizations have the past board president stay on another year while the 
current board president leads to help with transition.  The board discussed adding another At 
Large Member to join the Executive Board.  Tim Van De Yacht was nominated by Patel, second 
by Wendt.  Van De Yacht accepted the nomination.  Polley expressed interested in being the 
Vice President for another two-year term.  Polley was nominated by Wright, second by Krahn.  
Greg Fisher was nominated by Patel, second by Van De Yacht to be the President for another 
two-year term.  Fisher accepted the nomination. 

Call for a motion to elect Greg Fisher as Board President (01/2025 to 01/2027), Jamie Polley as 
Vice President (01/2025 to 01/2027) and Tim Van De Yacht as Executive Committee Member at 
Large (01/2025 to 01/2027), approved by all. 

Polley stated the By-Laws would need to be updated to reflect the new Executive Committee 
Board.  White stated this can be done at the next meeting. 

Reserve Funds 
White explained to the board best practices would be to establish a reserve fund account.  
Krahn stated this would be a good idea to protect the interest of the business.  Krahn stated 
healthy reserve funds would be close to $500,000.  White stated this will be a topic for 2025 to 
at least establish a starting fund account or balance. 

 

http://www.visitwausau.com/marketing


 
 
  

Village of Rothschild Update 
White gave a brief update on the history of the Village of Rothschild and why Visit Wausau is 
currently not in contact.  The Board of Directors discussed possibilities and ways to work 
together.  Item was tabled until March’s meeting date. 

 
Unfinished Business 
None at this time. 

Committee Reports 
None at this time. 

Announcements or Request 
None at this time. 
 

Next Meeting Date 
Next meeting date is scheduled for Wednesday, March 19, 2025 at Granite Peak 

Call for a motion to adjourn by Patel, second by Krahn approved by all. 1:05 pm. 

 
 

 



 7:44 PM
 03/13/25
 Cash Basis

 Wausau/Central WI CVB
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through February 2025
TOTAL

Jan - Feb 25 Budget $ Over/Under Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

402 · Gift Shop - Taxable 0.00 3,332.00 -3,332.00

403 · Gift Sales - Non Taxable 0.00 0.00 0.00

405 · Publication & Program Revenue 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00

406 · Partnership Plans 0.00 0.00 0.00

407 · DTN Income 1,548.40 3,750.00 -2,201.60

410 · Brochure Distribution Service 0.00 1,580.00 -1,580.00

415 · Advertising 0.00 0.00 0.00

420 · Sponorship 0.00 0.00 0.00

422 · Registration Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00

430 · Resale/Misc  Revenue 8,897.43 832.00 8,065.43

432 · Interest  Income 1,117.02 208.00 909.02

434 · Print & Design Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

435 · Room Tax 92,290.43 171,500.00 -79,209.57

440 · Sports Authority 0.00 0.00 0.00

441 · Grant Revenue 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00

Total Income 103,853.28 191,202.00 -87,348.72

Gross Profit 103,853.28 191,202.00 -87,348.72

Expense

499 · Trade Out 0.00 0.00 0.00

500 · Conference Expenses 1,964.46 2,808.00 -843.54

534 · Print & Design Expenses 1,281.06 0.00 1,281.06

564 · Participant Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00

565 · Event Supply 0.00 0.00 0.00

565A · Event Service Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00

565B · Event Facility Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00

567 · Merchandise for resale 0.00 750.00 -750.00

569 · Property Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00

574 · Storage/Rent Events 0.00 0.00 0.00

576 · Outside Services 0.00 418.00 -418.00

607 · Advertising Expenses 29,679.75 18,590.00 11,089.75

608 · Marketing Expense 5,921.87 12,500.00 -6,578.13

609 · Website 9,827.08 11,666.00 -1,838.92

612 · Grant Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00

675 · Tourism Research Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00

705 · Computer & Software Expense 933.47 1,416.00 -482.53

707 · Legal & Accounting 411.50 1,000.00 -588.50

708 · Dues & Subscriptions 4,176.61 5,583.00 -1,406.39

709 · Miscellaneous Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00

710 · Office Expense 1,203.31 1,332.00 -128.69

712 · Visitors Magazine Expense 2,500.00 3,541.00 -1,041.00

 Page 1 of 2



 7:44 PM
 03/13/25
 Cash Basis

 Wausau/Central WI CVB
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through February 2025
TOTAL

Jan - Feb 25 Budget $ Over/Under Budget

715 · Bank & Credit Card Fees 178.95 366.00 -187.05

718 · Registration Fees Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00

720 · Vehicle Expense 70.76 416.00 -345.24

721 · Seminars & Training 0.00 334.00 -334.00

722 · Repairs & Maint 0.00 334.00 -334.00

730 · Health Insurance 5,647.66 7,250.00 -1,602.34

732 · Meals & Entertainment 555.74 816.00 -260.26

733 · Insurance 1,928.16 3,000.00 -1,071.84

750 · Interest Expense 0.00 132.00 -132.00

755 · Telephone Expense 681.24 732.00 -50.76

756 · Equipment Lease 0.00 0.00 0.00

760 · Postage 283.46 584.00 -300.54

770 · Rent /Storage Expense 1,660.00 2,916.00 -1,256.00

771 · Parking Permit 0.00 0.00 0.00

772 · Utilities 0.00 0.00 0.00

773 · Tourism Commissions 0.00 0.00 0.00

775 · Capital Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00

800 · Salary & Wages 33,144.01 45,250.00 -12,105.99

809 · Employee Benefits 1,400.00 1,500.00 -100.00

810 · Payroll Taxes 5,268.07 4,834.00 434.07

811 · Retirement Plan 1,202.65 2,082.00 -879.35

812 · Interest Expense Building 0.00 0.00 0.00

813 · Interest Expense EDIL 666.70 800.00 -133.30

Total Expense 110,586.51 130,950.00 -20,363.49

Net Ordinary Income -6,733.23 60,252.00 -66,985.23

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

931 · Restr. Weston Hold Release 7,000.00

975 · Depreciation Expense 2,214.00 2,214.00 0.00

Total Other Expense 9,214.00 2,214.00 7,000.00

Net Other Income -9,214.00 -2,214.00 -7,000.00
Net Income -15,947.23 58,038.00 -73,985.23

 Page 2 of 2



 7:52 PM
 03/13/25
 Cash Basis

 Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority Inc.
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through February 2025
TOTAL

Jan - Feb 25 Budget $ Over/Under Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

331 · Restr. MMB Weston 8,287.99

332 · Restr. MMB Rib Mountain 0.00 0.00 0.00

333 · Restr. MMB Wausau 0.00 0.00 0.00

402 · Gift Shop 0.00 0.00 0.00

415 · Advertising 0.00 0.00 0.00

420 · Sponsorship 18,000.00 8,400.00 9,600.00

422 · Registration Fees 11,728.70 19,400.00 -7,671.30

422A · BSG FS Registrations 0.00 0.00 0.00

430 · Resale/Misc Revenue 9,670.11 3,000.00 6,670.11

432 · Interest Income 220.89 82.00 138.89

434 · Print & Design Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

435 · Outdoor Rec Room Tax Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

440 · Sports Authority 17,567.63 20,000.00 -2,432.37

441 · Grant Revenue 0.00 1,666.00 -1,666.00

442 · Meetings Mean Business 0.00 0.00 0.00

444 · Vendor Income 0.00 0.00 0.00

445 · Contract Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Income 65,475.32 52,548.00 12,927.32

Gross Profit 65,475.32 52,548.00 12,927.32

Expense

499 · Trade Out 0.00 0.00 0.00

500 · Conference Expenses 265.71 1,666.00 -1,400.29

534 · Print & Design Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

564 · Participant Supplies 21,432.75 15,000.00 6,432.75

565 · Event Supply 0.00 6,700.00 -6,700.00

565A · Event Service Fees 0.00 6,700.00 -6,700.00

565B · Event Facility Fees 0.00 1,250.00 -1,250.00

565C · BSG FS Event Fees 0.00 1,250.00 -1,250.00

566 · Reim Registration/Contract Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00

567 · Merchandise for resale 0.00 0.00 0.00

574 · Storage/Rent Events 0.00 416.00 -416.00

576 · Outside Services 0.00 84.00 -84.00

607 · Advertising Expenses 9,036.59 9,000.00 36.59

608 · Marketing Expenses 38.00 1,416.00 -1,378.00

609 · Website 23.17 166.00 -142.83

612 · Grant Expense 4,000.00 10,500.00 -6,500.00

705 · Computer & Software Expense 0.00 416.00 -416.00

707 · Legal & Accounting 1,376.50 1,500.00 -123.50

708 · Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 1,084.00 -1,084.00

710 · Office Expenses 207.30 416.00 -208.70

 Page 1 of 2



 7:52 PM
 03/13/25
 Cash Basis

 Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority Inc.
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through February 2025
TOTAL

Jan - Feb 25 Budget $ Over/Under Budget

715 · Bank & Credit Card Fees 1,005.60 1,000.00 5.60

718 · Registration Fees Expense 675.00 500.00 175.00

720 · Vehicle Expense 0.00 416.00 -416.00

721 · Seminars & Training 0.00 332.00 -332.00

732 · Meals & Entainment 69.68 416.00 -346.32

733 · Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00

750 · Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00

755 · Telephone Expenses 0.00 100.00 -100.00

756 · Equipment Lease 0.00 0.00 0.00

760 · Postage 0.00 208.00 -208.00

770 · Rent/Storage Exense 0.00 334.00 -334.00

800 · Salary & Wages 8,291.67 11,082.00 -2,790.33

810 · Payroll Taxes 598.22 850.00 -251.78

813 · EIDL Interest Payment 159.30 168.00 -8.70

Total Expense 47,179.49 72,970.00 -25,790.51

Net Ordinary Income 18,295.83 -20,422.00 38,717.83
Net Income 18,295.83 -20,422.00 38,717.83

 Page 2 of 2



Feb 28, 25

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
0100 · People's CVB Checking 105,619.22
0101 · People's CVB Money Market 683,314.81

Total Checking/Savings 788,934.03

Other Current Assets
120 · Due From Sports Authority 448,741.54

Total Other Current Assets 448,741.54

Total Current Assets 1,237,675.57

Fixed Assets
149 · Signage 11,653.19
150 · Furniture & Equipment 73,973.16
160 · Accum Depreciation -42,884.88

Total Fixed Assets 42,741.47

TOTAL ASSETS 1,280,417.04

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

227 · Accrued FICA/ FED 2,503.36
229 · Accrued Wis WH 883.36
240 · Accrued Interest 3,456.00
242 · Sales Tax Payable 1.16

Total Other Current Liabilities 6,843.88

Total Current Liabilities 6,843.88

Long Term Liabilities
281 · Disaster Relief Loan 145,828.50

Total Long Term Liabilities 145,828.50

Total Liabilities 152,672.38

Equity
320 · Unrestricted Net Assets 1,110,834.63
326 · Restr. Net Assets - Weston 32,857.26
Net Income -15,947.23

Total Equity 1,127,744.66

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,280,417.04

7:43 PM Wausau/Central WI CVB

03/13/25 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of February 28, 2025

Page 1



Feb 28, 25

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Badger State Games 1,075.47
Sports Authority CVB 8,032.96
0 · Community Foundation 48,166.70
100 · Peoples Sports Authority MM 110,359.71
101 · People's Sports Authority M 300,484.94
102 · People's Sports Authority CVB 126,708.42
105 · People's Badger State Games 130,787.45

Total Checking/Savings 725,615.65

Other Current Assets
110 · N/R Wausau Marathon 4,500.00

Total Other Current Assets 4,500.00

Total Current Assets 730,115.65

TOTAL ASSETS 730,115.65

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

120 · Due to CWVB 448,741.54
240 · Accrued Interest 796.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 449,537.54

Total Current Liabilities 449,537.54

Long Term Liabilities
281 · Disaster Relief Loan 35,921.50

Total Long Term Liabilities 35,921.50

Total Liabilities 485,459.04

Equity
31500 · Restr. MMB Rollover 232,970.00
32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets -6,609.22
Net Income 18,295.83

Total Equity 244,656.61

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 730,115.65

7:52 PM Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority Inc.

03/13/25 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of February 28, 2025

Page 1



 11:00 AM
 11/20/2024
 Cash Basis

 Wausau/Central WI CVB
 Profit Loss 2025 Budget  vs. 2024 

Wausau Central Wisconsin Conventio & Visitors Bureau

2025 Budget                            
Approved 12/18/24 CVB SA Total CVB SA Total Total

YTD 24 YTD 24 Total YTD 24 YTD 25 YTD 25 Total YTD 25 Variance

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

330 · Restr. Schofield Hold 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

330 · Restr. MMB Schofield 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

331 · Restr. Weston Hold 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

400 · CVB Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

402 · Gift Shop - Taxable 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00

403 · Gift Sales - Non Taxable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

405 · Publication & Program Revenue 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 0.00

406 · Partnership Plans 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -20,000.00

407 · DTN Income 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 -10,000.00

410 · Brochure Distribution Service 9,500.00 0.00 9,500.00 9,500.00 0.00 9,500.00 0.00

415 · Advertising 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

420 · Sponorship 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 -25,000.00

422A · BSG FS Registration 0.00 68,000.00 68,000.00 0.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 -3,000.00

422 · Registration Fees 0.00 117,000.00 117,000.00 0.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 8,000.00

430 · Resale/Misc  Revenue 10,000.00 18,000.00 28,000.00 5,000.00 18,000.00 23,000.00 -5,000.00

432 · Interest  Income 2,000.00 500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 500.00 3,000.00 500.00

434 · Print & Design Income 500.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

435 · Room Tax 640,000.00 0.00 640,000.00 686,000.00 0.00 686,000.00 46,000.00

440 · Sports Authority 0.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 0.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 5,000.00

441 · Grant Revenue 32,000.00 10,000.00 42,000.00 20,000.00 10,000.00 30,000.00 -12,000.00

442 · Meetings Mean Business 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

445 · Vendor Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

445 · Contract Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

446 · Municipality Account 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

450 · Capital Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

470 · Community Foundation--Taxable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

471 · Unrealized Gain 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

900 · Comm Fund / Revenue & Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Income 797,000.00 408,500.00 1,205,500.00 796,500.00 393,500.00 1,190,000.00 -15,500.00

Gross Profit 797,000.00 408,500.00 1,205,500.00 796,500.00 393,500.00 1,190,000.00 -15,500.00

Expense

499 · Trade Out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

500 · Conference Expenses 12,000.00 5,000.00 17,000.00 14,500.00 10,000.00 24,500.00 7,500.00

534 · Print & Design Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

564 · Participant Supplies 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 -10,000.00

565 · Event Supply 0.00 42,500.00 42,500.00 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 -2,500.00

565A · Event Service Fees 0.00 43,000.00 43,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 -3,000.00

565B · Event Facility Fees 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00

565C · BSG FS Event Fees 0.00 63,000.00 63,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 -3,000.00

566 · Reim. Registration/Contract Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

567 · Merchandise for resale 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 4,500.00 0.00 4,500.00 -500.00

569 · Property Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

574 · Storage/Rent Events 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00

576 · Outside Services 5,500.00 7,000.00 12,500.00 2,500.00 500.00 3,000.00 -9,500.00

607 · Advertising Expenses 95,000.00 15,000.00 110,000.00 111,550.00 15,000.00 126,550.00 16,550.00

608 · Marketing Expense 65,000.00 5,000.00 70,000.00 75,000.00 5,000.00 80,000.00 10,000.00

609 · Website 60,000.00 1,000.00 61,000.00 70,000.00 1,000.00 71,000.00 10,000.00

612 · Grant Expense 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 63,000.00 63,000.00 3,000.00

675 · Tourism Research Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

705 · Computer & Software Expense 8,200.00 2,000.00 10,200.00 8,500.00 2,500.00 11,000.00 800.00

707 · Legal & Accounting 14,500.00 4,000.00 18,500.00 20,000.00 6,000.00 26,000.00 7,500.00

708 · Dues & Subscriptions 14,500.00 3,500.00 18,000.00 19,000.00 6,500.00 25,500.00 7,500.00

 Page 1 of 2



 11:00 AM
 11/20/2024
 Cash Basis

 Wausau/Central WI CVB
 Profit Loss 2025 Budget  vs. 2024 

Approved 12/18/24 CVB SA Total CVB SA Total Total
YTD 24 YTD 24 Total YTD 24 YTD 25 YTD 25 Total YTD 25 Variance

709 · Miscellaneous Exp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

710 · Office Expense 8,000.00 2,500.00 10,500.00 8,000.00 2,500.00 10,500.00 0.00

712 · Visitors Magazine Expense 45,000.00 0.00 45,000.00 12,500.00 0.00 12,500.00 -32,500.00

715 · Bank & Credit Card Fees 2,000.00 5,200.00 7,200.00 2,200.00 6,000.00 8,200.00 1,000.00

718 · Registration Fees Expense 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00

720 · Vehicle Expense 4,500.00 5,500.00 10,000.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00

721 · Seminars & Training 2,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 0.00

722 · Repairs & Maint 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 -500.00

730 · Health Insurance 43,500.00 0.00 43,500.00 43,500.00 0.00 43,500.00 0.00

732 · Meals & Entertainment 4,900.00 2,500.00 7,400.00 4,900.00 2,500.00 7,400.00 0.00

733 · Insurance 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00 0.00

750 · Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 800.00

755 · Telephone Expense 4,200.00 600.00 4,800.00 4,400.00 600.00 5,000.00 200.00

756 · Equipment Lease 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -2,500.00

760 · Postage 4,700.00 2,800.00 7,500.00 3,500.00 2,500.00 6,000.00 -1,500.00

770 · Rent /Storage Expense 17,500.00 2,000.00 19,500.00 17,500.00 2,000.00 19,500.00 0.00

771 · Parking Permit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

772 · Utilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

773 · Tourism Commissions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

775 · Capital Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

800 · Salary & Wages 292,000.00 66,500.00 358,500.00 279,000.00 66,500.00 345,500.00 -13,000.00

809 · Employee Benefits 10,200.00 0.00 10,200.00 10,200.00 0.00 10,200.00 0.00

810 · Payroll Taxes 29,200.00 3,500.00 32,700.00 29,000.00 5,100.00 34,100.00 1,400.00

811 · Retirement Plan 8,760.00 2,000.00 10,760.00 12,500.00 0.00 12,500.00 1,740.00

812 · Interest Expense Building 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

813 · EIDL Interest Payment 5,000.00 1,200.00 6,200.00 4,800.00 1,000.00 5,800.00 -400.00

890 · Penalty 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Expense 784,160.00 407,800.00 1,191,960.00 782,850.00 393,200.00 1,176,050.00 -15,910.00

Profit/Loss 12,840.00 700.00 13,540.00 13,650.00 300.00 13,950.00 410.00

284  · EIDL Loan Payment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

285  · N/P Building - Incredible Bank 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

975 · Depreciation Expense 13,687.00 0.00 13,687.00 13,284.00 0.00 13,284.00 -403.00

Total Expense 797,847.00 407,800.00 1,205,647.00 796,134.00 393,200.00 1,189,334.00 -16,313.00

Net Profit/Loss after Depreciation -847.00 700.00 -147.00 366.00 300.00 666.00 813.00

 Page 2 of 2



Board Report March 2025 
 

● Rothschild Negotiations going well.  We should be signing a contract this month. 

● Attended Canoecopia - National Parks working on Great Pinery Heritage Waterway.  

We will take over their website presence 

● GreaterWausau.org gave us their website presence - we are incorporating now. 

● City of Wausau wants us to take over Wausome website.  

● Village of Athens Chamber wants a presence on VisitWausau, we are negotiating now. 

● Submitting our Behind the Plate chef series for Telly Awards.  Good PR. 

● I spoke at the Wisconsin Governor's Conference on Tourism about the Nine  Mile 

Impact Study.  We had 16 Wausau people attend!  Most ever!  Travel Wisconsin 

noticed. 

● We are negotiating in taking over IronBull’s marketing - 10% agency fee for us. 

● NFL Draft is ok - we will be ready to pivot soon to include locals.  We are advertising 

for that. 

● Placement of Spotify, Radio and CTV (digital) ads have gone out.  We will need to pivot 

to summer beginning of April. 

● Some municipalities have issues with the perception of us not doing enough to 

represent them.  Some mis-perceptions there.  See our excel file on coverage of the 

area. 

● Save the Date - May 5th - Monday Night at Hilton. Tourism gala. “It Starts with a Visit.” 

 

SEO Executive Summary 

Overall Traffic: 

● This month, the site saw a total of approx. 34,000 users (+22% YOY), 43,000 sessions 

(+36% YOY), with 32,000 engaged sessions (+79% YOY), for an engagement rate of 75%. 

● The top channels driving traffic to the website were Organic Search (48% of total users), 

Paid Social (23%), and Cross-Network (13%). 

Organic Traffic: 

● There were approx. 16,000 organic users (+51% YOY) this month and 22,000 sessions 

(+66% YOY), and 16,000 engaged sessions (+58% YOY), for an engagement rate of 73%. 

● The Bowling Championships event listing was the top landing page this month, bringing 

over 1,700 users to the site. 

● The Sports Show event listing saw the largest YOY increase in visitors (+1,800%). Other 

notable YOY increases include Sylvan Hill (+368%), 9 Mile County Forest RA (+82%), and 

the Events Calendar and Badger State Games-Winter Games (both +13%). 

● The site received approx. 18,000 organic clicks (+64% YOY) and 1.3 million impressions 

(+31% YOY). The CTR increased by +25% YOY and the ARP improved by -11% YOY. 



● "Wisconsin State Bowling tournament 2025" was the top search query with nearly 600 

clicks. "Bowling" related searches saw clicks increase by 4,858% YOY, and "Wisconsin 

State Bowling" moved an incredible 49 positions to the second search result on average 

this year. 

● "Sports show" related searches were also popular this month, with over 300 clicks 

(+4,200% YOY). Consider creating some blog content around this event next year to 

better capitalize on its popularity. 

● The blog accounted for approx. 500 users and 500 sessions (both +25% YOY), and 450 

engaged sessions (+27% YOY). Total organic views rose by +32% YOY to nearly 700 views. 

● The Ultimate Valentines Day Weekend post was the top blog landing page with nearly 

200 users. 

 

PPC Executive Summary 

Highlights 

● Google Ads saw increased in clicks across all campaigns. Although the search campaigns' 

CPC saw a 20% increase year-over-year, the $0.68 metric was below the industry average 

of $0.75. Nearly all DMOs running paid media saw year-over-year increases in CPC. The 

increased budget also helped drive these account-level improvements. 

● The Outdoors Performance Max campaign saw a strong increase in clicks compared to 

the previous year which helped drive up the account-level conversions by 68%. 

● Engagement saw significant improvements with engaged sessions increasing 112% and 

engagement rate increasing to an account-level metric of 95%. Also notably, Partner 

Referrals and Outdoor Rec Page Views saw strong year-over-year increases. 

● For Meta, performance improvements were seen across all metrics, most notably the 

225% increase in link clicks and 76% increase in CTR, all at a 21% lower CPC. Last 

February, the paid social spend was well below the monthly budget which also 

contributed to the strong year-over-year improvements. 

● The Accommodations remarketing campaign was enabled last month on Meta and drove 

82 BookDirect referrals, 72 hotel-specific Partner Referrals, and 19 Booking Widget 

submissions. These results were stronger than the Accommodations search campaign, 

an unusual trend when paid social conversions surpass paid search. This is a great 

indication that users may be more likely to engage in booking accommodations on Meta 

than Google. 

 

Upcoming Campaigns and Opportunities 

● Check in re: Sports Meta remarketing campaign assets/landing pages 

● Check in re: new paid media channels (Spotify and CTV) 
 



Summary KPIs
Source: Zartico Lodging Data.
KPI metrics display short-term vacation rental (STVR) and hotel performance for your primary geographic area. 
Use the filter at the top to filter all insights by STVR or hotel performance. Twelve-month rolling trends can be found in the sections below.

How does occupancy vary by day?
Use this chart to understand your daily occupancy trend and how it differs between hotels and short-term vacation rentals (STVR) for your primary geographic area.

How does lodging performance vary by day of week?
Changes in length of stay or ADR help to illuminate different visitor groups and the reasons why they visit your destination.

$247
% Change Previous Year

4% $236

Hotel Avg. Stay Value

$486
% Change Previous Year

-1% $491

STVR Avg. Stay Value

1.7 days
% Change Previous Year

2% 1.7 days

Hotel Avg. Length of Stay

3.0 days
% Change Previous Year

-2% 3.0 days

STVR Avg. Length of Stay

Hotel Occupancy STVR Paid Occupancy

Date (Date)

02
/0

1/
20

25

02
/0

2/
20

25

02
/0

3/
20

25

02
/0

4/
20

25

02
/0

5/
20

25

02
/0

6/
20

25

02
/0

7/
20

25

02
/0

8/
20

25

02
/0

9/
20

25

02
/1

0/
20

25

02
/1

1/
20

25

02
/1

2/
20

25

02
/1

3/
20

25

02
/1

4/
20

25

02
/1

5/
20

25

02
/1

6/
20

25

02
/1

7/
20

25

02
/1

8/
20

25

02
/1

9/
20

25

02
/2

0/
20

25

02
/2

1/
20

25

02
/2

2/
20

25

02
/2

3/
20

25

02
/2

4/
20

25

02
/2

5/
20

25

02
/2

6/
20

25

02
/2

7/
20

25

02
/2

8/
20

25

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

125%

Hotel & STVR Paid Occupancy

Hotel Avg. Length of Stay STVR Avg. Length of Stay

Day of Week (Sun-Sat) (Date)

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
0

2.0 days

4.0 days

6.0 days

Length of Stay by Day of Week

Hotel ADR STVR ADR

Day of Week (Sun-Sat) (Date)

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

ADR by Day of Week


/�����	/0�  ������ ��

��������



Key Lodging KPIs for Reporting
Use this section to report key insights about your hotels and short-term vacation rentals (STVR). Observed hotel demand is for properties reporting into the Amadeus system 
and will not reflect 100% of all properties in your destination. Use this to understand year-over-year demand trends. Zartico recommends using lodging tax data as the most 
authoritative measure of total lodging revenue and demand.

What are your destination-wide trends over the past 12 months?
Use these charts to see destination-wide trends over the previous 12 months, independent of the date filter specified above. Average Stay Value is total revenue divided by 
the number of guest check-ins, reflecting the amount for the entire stay timeframe. These insights reflect your primary geography only.

69%
% Change Previous Year

-2% 71%

Hotel Occupancy

$145
% Change Previous Year

4% $139

Hotel ADR

16.0 K
% Change Previous Year

-6% 16.9 K

Hotel Demand

$100
% Change Previous Year

2% $98

Hotel RevPAR

28%
% Change Previous Year

-12% 32%

STVR Paid Occupancy

$164
% Change Previous Year

1% $163

STVR ADR

1.9 K
% Change Previous Year

-7% 2.1 K

STVR Demand

$46
% Change Previous Year

-12% $53

STVR RevPAR

Hotel Occupancy STVR Paid Occupancy

35%

62%

74%
70%

61%

90% 92%

26%
19% 18% 19%

26%

45% 47%

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Occupancy by Day of Week

Hotel Occupancy STVR Paid Occupancy

M
ar

 2
02

4

A
pr

 2
02

4

M
ay

 2
02

4

Ju
n 

20
24

Ju
l 2

02
4

A
ug

 2
02

4

Se
p 

20
24

O
ct

 2
02

4

N
ov

 2
02

4

D
ec

 2
02

4

Ja
n 

20
25

Fe
b 

20
25

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Occupancy Trends By Month

Hotel RevPAR Airbnb RevPAR

$48

$89

$108
$102

$79

$93

$105

$42
$35 $35 $37

$45

$66 $68

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
0

$25

$50

$75

$100

$125

RevPAR by Day of Week

��������



How does your average booking window change over time?
Use these insights to understand the difference in booking window between hotels and short-term vacation rentals (STVR) in your primary geography. The dates used in the 
graphs below indicate the check-in date, while the booking window indicates the number of days in advance of check-in the room or rental was reserved. Insights are not 
connected to the date filter and are auto-set to a rolling 12 months.

Complete Lodging Data Table
Export this data to either CSV or Excel. This chart shows data for all geographic areas in your subscription.

Hotel Avg. Stay Value STVR Avg. Stay Value

A
pr

 2
02

4

M
ay

 2
02

4

Ju
n 

20
24

Ju
l 2

02
4

A
ug

 2
02

4

Se
p 

20
24

O
ct

 2
02

4

N
ov

 2
02

4

D
ec

 2
02

4

Ja
n 

20
25

Fe
b 

20
25

M
ar

 2
02

5

0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

Avg. Stay Value by Month

Hotel Avg. Stay Value Hotel Avg. Stay Value - Prev. Year

STVR Avg. Stay Value STVR Avg. Stay Value - Prev. Year

$225 $231

$581
$535

0

$200

$400

$600

$800

Avg. Stay Value - Previous 12 Months

Hotel Avg. Booking Window STVR Avg. Booking Window

A
pr

 2
02

4

M
ay

 2
02

4

Ju
n 

20
24

Ju
l 2

02
4

A
ug

 2
02

4

Se
p 

20
24

O
ct

 2
02

4

N
ov

 2
02

4

D
ec

 2
02

4

Ja
n 

20
25

Fe
b 

20
25

M
ar

 2
02

5

10.0 days

20.0 days

30.0 days

40.0 days

50.0 days

Avg. Booking Window by Month

Hotel Avg. Booking Window Hotel Avg. Booking Window - Prev. Year

STVR Avg. Booking Window STVR Avg. Booking Window - Prev. Year

22 days 21 days

33 days 32 days

0

10 days

20 days

30 days

40 days

Avg. Booking Window by Lodging Type

Month/Year (Date)  Market Lodging Type Source Market Flag Market Type Avg. Stay Value Occupancy Hotel ADR STVR ADR Revenue Demand Hotel Avg. Le

Mar 2025 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $270 41% $140 – $573,036 4,081

STVR airbnb primary County $522 25% – $146.66 $103,399 705

Feb 2025 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $247 69% $145 – $2,315,672 15,959

STVR airbnb primary County $486 28% – $163.73 $312,882 1,911

Jan 2025 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $230 60% $140 – $2,147,611 15,382

STVR airbnb primary County $525 29% – $165.29 $366,118 2,215

Dec 2024 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $228 55% $132 – $1,855,795 14,048

STVR airbnb primary County $588 26% – $175.56 $343,049 1,954

Nov 2024 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $222 52% $132 – $1,703,823 12,887

STVR airbnb primary County $488 23% – $140.94 $238,192 1,690

Oct 2024 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $228 71% $134 – $2,429,747 18,118

STVR airbnb primary County $493 28% – $150.69 $315,694 2,095

Sep 2024 Marathon - WI Hotel hotel primary County $234 69% $140 – $2,389,001 17,055

Mar 2025 Marathon - WI

��������



Module Diagnostics
Indicates the most recent date of data loaded. Use this to validate that you have a full month of data prior to reporting. Technical support: If the Core Coverage Measures 
insight is blank, please check the Primary Geography Variable.

2025-03-12
Lodging Core - Max Date Loaded

Column (Left):

Lodging Core - Room Count H…

Line (Right):

Lodging Core - Property Coun…

Lodging Core - Property Coun…

Month/Year (Date)

Lo
dg

in
g 

Co
re

 - 
Ro

om
 C

ou
nt

 …

Ja
n 

20
19

Ju
l 2

01
9

Ja
n 

20
20

Ju
l 2

02
0

Ja
n 

20
21

Ju
l 2

02
1

Ja
n 

20
22

Ju
l 2

02
2

Ja
n 

20
23

Ju
l 2

02
3

Ja
n 

20
24

Ju
l 2

02
4

Ja
n 

20
25

A
pr

 2
01

9

O
ct

 2
01

9

A
pr

 2
02

0

O
ct

 2
02

0

A
pr

 2
02

1

O
ct

 2
02

1

A
pr

 2
02

2

O
ct

 2
02

2

A
pr

 2
02

3

O
ct

 2
02

3

A
pr

 2
02

4

O
ct

 2
02

4

0

300

600

900

0

100

200

300

Lodging Core Coverage Measures

��������



How do visitors impact your economy?
Source: Zartico Spend Data

How much are visitors contributing to your economy?
Source: Zartico Spend Data

Where are your visitors coming from?
Source: Zartico Geolocation Data

What are your visitor demographics?
Source: Zartico Spend Data

Where do visitors go in-destination? Where do they make the greatest impact?
Source: Zartico Location Data

Sample Size Reference
These metrics provide a reference for the number of unique visitor devices (Zartico Geolocation Data) and cardholders (Zartico Spend Data) used in the insights above and 
are controlled by the filters selected at the top. If these show yellow or red values, the insights should be treated as directional but less precise, owing to a smaller sample 
size.  In these cases, expanding your filter criteria at the top will increase the sample size.

19.0%
% of all Devices that are Visitors

12.5%
% of all Spend that came from Visitors

39%
% of Visitor Spend towards Local Businesses

17%

% of all Restaurant Spend that came
from Visitors

25%

% of all Retail Spend that came from
Visitors

74%

% of all Accommodation Spend that
came from Visitors

10%

% of all Attraction Spend that came
from Visitors

15%

12%

12%

10%

10%

Madison WI

Green Bay-Appleton WI

Milwaukee WI

Wausau-Rhinelander WI

Chicago IL

0%
2.5% 5%

7.5%
10%

12.5%
15%

17.5%

Top Visitor Markets Avg. Visitor Spend:

57

97

137

177

217

257

297

% of Visitors:

1%

⋮
6%

⋮
15%

56%
% of Visitor Cardholders Age 25-54

48%

% of Visitor Cardholders with a Household Income
$100k+

38%
% of Visitor Cardholders with Children

52.8%
18.8%

7.1%
6.8%

4.1%

Outdoor Recreation
Accommodations

Food
Specialty Retail

Sports

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

% of Visitors

44%
40%

23%
20%

18%

Accommodations
Conventions & Meetings

Attractions
Specialty Retail

Outdoor Recreation

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

% of all Devices that are Visitors

5,261
Visitor Cardholder Count Sample Size

2,503
Visitor Device Count Sample Size

2025-02-28
Spend data loaded through:

2025-02-28
Geolocation data loaded through:

���
3�10�2���1./� �� �� ���	

������ �

https://www.mapbox.com/


Website Summary

Website Core KPIs
These KPIs are compared to the same period in the previous year, due to seasonality producing higher value insights. If you select "This Year" in the date range, you are 
comparing YTD this year to the complete previous year. 
Tip: Set an alert for the KPI you want to watch closely. Source: Google Analytics 4

How do visitors get to your website?
Your website is the front door to your destination. This insight helps you identify the top sources of traffic to your website (dark blue) as well as the top sources of 
engagement with your website (light blue).                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Tip: 
When the dark blue bar is longer than the light blue bar, it indicates that those traffic sources have low engagement as measured by time on site.
Source: Google Analytics 4.

How much search traffic does your website receive?
Paid and Organic Search Traffic is an indicator of how prominently your site appears in Search Engine rankings, like Google, and how much of your total website traffic 
results from search engines. Your data is benchmarked against all Zartico partners.
Source: Google Analytics 4.

Understand your website performance and engagement. Use these information to inform future campaign and content strategies.

These insights are based on a date range 2025-01-01 to 2025-03-07.

119,304
 -7%

change

128,140
prev. quarter

Sessions

03:35
 58%

change

02:16
prev. quarter

Avg. Session Duration

74.6%
 8%
change

68.8%
prev. quarter

Engagement Rate

91,342
 -10%

change

101,107
prev. quarter

New Users

Traffic Sources As % of Total Total Session Duration as % of Total

Medium

44.4%

0.1%

20.6% 20.7%

11.2%

2.8%
0.1% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

34.9%
33.1%

12.2%
9.1% 8.1%

2.5%
0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

organic (empty value) cpc paid social (none) referral email paid (not set) landing-page Central
Wisconsin CVB

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

Web Traffic and Engagement

66.0% 65.6%
60.8%

Jan 2025 Feb 2025 Mar 2025
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

Percentage Paid & Organic Search to Website

65.0%
Versus Benchmark - Paid & Organic Search

16% 55.9%

Paid & Organic Search vs Benchmark


�����/.0� �� �� ���	

����� �



How "sticky" is your website?
Web marketers typically watch a site's Engagement Rate. Your goal is to retain as many of your site visitors as possible. The benchmark is drawn from paid and organic 
search traffic for all Zartico partners.
Source: Google Analytics 4.

What content topics are users looking for?
Each page on your website is assigned a thematic grouping called a content topic. These help you identify what types of activities potential visitors are searching for as well 
as which types of content will perform well on your social channels, in paid content efforts and paid search.                                                                          
Tip: Click into either chart to explore page-by-page performance for pages within a content topic.                                                                                                                                                       
Source: Google Analytics 4 & Zartico.

79.9%
Vers… Benchmark - Engagement Rate, Paid & Organic …

13% 70.9%

Paid & Organic Engagement Rate vs Benchmark

Organic, CPC, PPC Engagement Rate Benchmark - Engagement Rate, Paid & Organic S…

Jan 2025 Feb 2025 Mar 2025
65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

Paid & Organic Engagement Rate vs Benchmark

Paid & Organic Search Sessions by Content TopicPaid & Organic Search Sessions by Content Topic

38.7%

25.7%

11.7%

10.0%

4.0%

Outdoor Recreation

Events

Navigation & Home Page

Logistics & planning

Food

0% 2.5% 5% 7.5% 10% 12.5% 15% 17.5% 20% 22.5% 25% 27.5% 30% 32.5% 35% 37.5% 40% 42.…

Web Sessions by Content TopicWeb Sessions by Content Topic

36.6%

21.7%

11.7%

8.9%

5.7%

Outdoor Recreation

Events

Navigation & Home Page

Logistics & planning

Retail

0% 2.5% 5% 7.5% 10% 12.5% 15% 17.5% 20% 22.5% 25% 27.5% 30% 32.5% 35% 37.5% 40%

����� �



What season does each content topic see the most traffic?
This insight is not configured to the date filter above and instead will always show the last 12 months.
Source: Google Analytics 4.

What are the most engaging pages on your website?
Bubble size = Total Number of Sessions. Only top 25 visited pages included. 
Source: Google Analytics 4.

Sessions Winter Sessions Spring Sessions Summer Sessions Fall

42.3%

25.9%

32.9%

27.8%

36%

7.9%

24.8%

35.6%

8.9%

28.5%

26.6%

30.3%

28.7%

19.1%

13%

16.1%

20.2%

19%

28.2%

21.4%

20.3%

17.1%

21.4%

23.1%

28.9%

13.9%

22.1%

35.9%

21.5%

24.7%

24.5%

41%

25.9%

23.5%

40.8%

22.8%

23.8%

22.2%

11.7%

16.6%

25.2%

29.5%

27.3%

20.5%

22.9%

27.9%

20.7%

33.1%

27.2%

26.5%

18.6%

45.7%

Outdoor Recreation

Events

Retail

Food

Accommodations

(empty value)

Arts & Entertainment

Nightlife

Conventions & Meetings

Business & Professional

Transportation

College & Universities

Medical

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 10…

Content Seasonality

Engagement Rate

Av
g.

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t T

im
e 

Pe
r 

Se
ss

io
n

30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100%

0

00:50

01:40

00:50

02:30

Website Engagement by Page

����� �



What pages are good contenders for on-page optimization to increase organic traffic to the site?
These pages are good content to optimize to increase organic traffic. Tip: Click on the URL in the left column to open the page in your browser.                                                                           
Source: Google Analytics 4.

Page Url Views (>100)  Organic Views % of Total (<50%) Engagement Rate (>40%)

http://www.visitwausau.com/outdoor-activities/?bounds=false&view=list&sort=qualityScore 30.8 K 4% 92.1%

http://www.visitwausau.com/events/?gad=1 14.7 K 19% 81.1%

http://www.visitwausau.com/restaurants/?gad=1 13.2 K 25% 63.7%

http://www.visitwausau.com/things-to-do/shopping-retail/?bounds=false&view=list&sort=quali… 10.3 K 23% 49.5%

http://www.visitwausau.com/outdoor-activities/tubing-sledding/ 7.3 K 7% 98.9%

http://www.visitwausau.com/ 6.2 K 45% 68.6%

http://www.visitwausau.com/things-to-do/ 5.3 K 30% 82.8%

http://www.visitwausau.com/blog/post/greater-wausau-winter-time-event-round-up/ 4.5 K 1% 71.5%

http://www.visitwausau.com/draft25/ 2.5 K 24% 58.6%

http://www.visitwausau.com/outdoor-activities/cross-country-skiing-and-snowshoeing/ 2.1 K 23% 97.6%

http://www.visitwausau.com/places-to-stay/hotels-motels/ 2.0 K 38% 79.2%

High Traffic Pages with Low Organic Sessions

����� �



% distribution of 'Municilpality'

Municilpality Count of Municilpality
Wausau 51.64%
Multiple 30.52%
Rib Mtn. 9.15%
Other 5.16%
Weston 2.82%
Schofield 0.70%
(blank) 0.00%
Grand Total 100.00%

Within the current 130 posts with "Multiple" 
municipalities included, Rib Mountain is in 91.
As of 03/12/2025

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6

Wausau

Multiple

Rib Mtn.

Other

Weston

Schofield

(blank)

Municilpality

M
un

ic
ilp

al
ity

Percentage distribution of 'Municilpality'



▼▼



▼▼

http://seo%20executive%20summary/
http://overall%20traffic%20performance/
http://industry%20comparison/
https://lookerstudio.google.com/u/1/reporting/b845cd78-9b58-465d-9d2c-78fc0dd7fd2d/page/p_8q3q44d80c/edit
http://ppc%20executive%20summary/
http://google%20search%20campaign%20summary/
http://paid%20search%20location%20summary/
http://facebook%20ads%20performance/


▼▼



▼▼



▼▼



▼▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼



▼▼

▼ ▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼



▼▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼

▼

▼

▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼

▼ ▼ ▼



▼▼

▼ ▼ ▼



▼▼

▼ ▼ ▼



▼▼



▼▼



▼▼

▼



▼▼

▼

▼

▼



▼▼▼



Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority 
P.O. Box 1486 Wausau, WI 54402 ● Phone 715-355-8788 ● Fax 715-359-2306 ● www.visitwausau.com

GRANT APPLICATION 
Event/Tournament Name: 

Event Dates: 

Local Organizing Committee: 

Tax or EIN #: 

Contact Person: 

Address: 

Phone Day/Cell: 

Email: 

Amount Requested: $ 

DESCRIPTION OF EVENT 

EVENT HISTORY  
Please write a brief description of the growth and development of the event over the past few years: 

5,000.00

The Hmong Wausau Festival will be hosted on July 27-28, 2024. We have seen the event grow from 7,000 attendees to a conservative estimate of 13,000. It continues to be one of the fastest-growing and largest Southeast Asian festivals in the country.

We intend to dedicate more time to marketing through grassroots efforts, along with bringing in additional performers and sports teams from outside the Midwest. We are confident in our ability to achieve this, as our coordinators have been actively marketing our event to various regions across the United States.

We are also experiencing an increase in interest from vendors outside the Midwest, and this is due to our initial advertising and promotional efforts. Additionally, we are beginning to emphasize a broader range of cultural foods, not limited to just Hmong cuisine.

Initially, we started the event with a few tournaments, such as flag football, soccer, and volleyball. Since then, we have expanded to include a fishing tournament and various other competitions and tournaments.

As the only Hmong festival in the country that features fireworks, we will also be focusing on our evening performance lineup. We are collaborating with surrounding event partners to bring a variety of performers to Central Wisconsin.



Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority 
P.O. Box 1486 Wausau, WI 54402 ● Phone 715-355-8788 ● Fax 715-359-2306 ● www.visitwausau.com

EVENT INFORMATION 
Proposed Event Location/Facility:   

Has the facility been secured? 

Number of Teams Expected: 

Number of Participants Expected: 

# Of Teams/Participants from outside 90 Miles: 

Estimated Number of Family & Friends per participant: 

Number of local teams: 

Number of local participants: 

HOTEL INFORMATION 
Has contact been made with any area hotels? Yes 

If so, who? Holiday Inn & Suites 

If not, can the CVB assist with securing your hotel accommodations?  

Use the chart below to indicate the number of hotel rooms needed by day: 

Date 

Day Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

Rooms 

Total Number of Room Nights: 
Average Length of Stay: 
Estimated # of Guests per room: 

People's Sports Complex

In the Process

Various of Tournaments, avg 20-50 each

3000 - 5000

75% of participants are expected to be outside

3-5 families and friends (conservatively)

Est: 25% locally

Est 25% locally

No, we will however, be working with our local hotels to house volunteers, and post their hotels availability on our website and Social Media page. We can always use the CVB's help with coordinating.

500

1000 - 1500

500

2000 - 2500

1-2 nights

3-4 per room



Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority 
P.O. Box 1486 Wausau, WI 54402 ● Phone 715-355-8788 ● Fax 715-359-2306 ● www.visitwausau.com

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
The Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention and Visitors Bureau’s Sports Authority Fund is designed to assist local, regional 
and national sports organizations in hosting their events in Wausau/Central Wisconsin. 

This application must be filled out completely and returned to the Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention & Visitors 
Bureau (CVB) prior to the event date for review by the Sports Authority Advisory Committee and approval by the CVB 
Board of Directors.   

Additional Criteria for Applicants to note: 
1. Any event seeking funding from the Sports Authority must hold the event in one of the communities represented

by the Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention & Visitors Bureau.
2. All area hotels must have an opportunity to submit a room block proposal through the CVB sales lead system in

order for an applicant to receive Sports Authority funding.
3. If the event is a bid event, please submit all bid documents, including an award letter if applicable, with your

application.
4. There is a limited amount of funding available.  Applications will be competitive. The following criteria are

important to the successful funding of an application:
a. Total economic impact generated by the event
b. Total room nights generated by the event
c. Type and distribution area of media coverage
d. Potential for future growth of the event
e. Potential as a step to hosting additional events or larger tournament
f. Sponsorship Benefits Received
g. Community Support

5. New events may be funded for up to three (3) years.   Applicants are required to provide a matching dollars
investment into the event that will increase by 25% each year unless room night production increases by 25%.

6. At the conclusion of the event, the CVB requires a detailed report outlining the estimated attendance, room night
production, positives and negatives of the event, and plans for the future.  Upon receipt of this report, the
remaining 15% of the allocated funding will be released to the applicant.  Failure to submit this report within 60
days of the conclusion of the event will cause applicant to forfeit any remaining monies awarded and will
prevent the applicant/organization from receiving future funds.

Application Acknowledgement 
The signature below acknowledges that the above information is true to the best of my knowledge at the signing of this 
application.  I understand that Information deemed inaccurate or misrepresented could result in a denied application or 
loss of event funding.  I have read the policies and procedures noted above.  Funding is not guaranteed by the submission 
of this application.  I understand that a final report on the event must be submitted within 60 days of the completion of 
the event. 

Event Representative: 

Printed Name:   Date: 

Yee Leng Xiong

2/28/2024



 2025 Hmong Wausau Festival Budget
Income
Sponsorships $50,000.00
Vendors $20,000.00
Admissions $40,000.00
Registration Fees $3,000.00
Grants $37,000.00
Total Income $150,000.00

Expenses
Contractors (security, garbage etc.) $60,000.00
Prizes and Performers $35,000.00
Rentals (Place, lights, etc.) $20,000.00
Marketing Budget $35,000.00
Total Expense $150,000.00



Hmong American Center Inc
HWF Profit and Loss
January - December 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, March 11, 2025 09:56 PM GMT-05:00   1/1

TOTAL

Revenue

30000 Public Support

32000 Contributions

32960 Summer Sports Festival Income 169,035.35

Total 32000 Contributions 169,035.35

Total 30000 Public Support 169,035.35

Total Revenue $169,035.35

GROSS PROFIT $169,035.35

Expenditures

60800 Programs

60891 Summer Sports Fest Expenses 180,291.18

Total 60800 Programs 180,291.18

Total Expenditures $180,291.18

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -11,255.83

NET REVENUE $ -11,255.83



Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority 
P.O. Box 1486 Wausau, WI 54402 ● Phone 715-355-8788 ● Fax 715-359-2306 ● www.visitwausau.com

GRANT APPLICATION 
Event/Tournament Name:

Event Dates:

Local Organizing Committee:

Tax or EIN #:

Contact Person:

Address:

Phone Day/Cell:

Email:

Amount Requested: $ 

Please write a brief description of the growth and development of the event over the past few years: 
EVENT HISTORY 

DESCRIPTION OF EVENT 

Friends of Kennedy Park Renovation Project 

Summer 2025

DCE Youth Baseball

39-1825007

Jim Olafson 

PO Box 31, Schofield, WI 54476

jolaf757@yahoo.com

715-870-1467

10,000.00

This upgraded park will become a tournament-style facility, enhancing the local economic impact while hosting state and regional competitions
with expanded baseball and softball fields, a skatepark area, walking paths, playgrounds, shaded areas, a new outdoor hockey rink, and
additional parking to accommodate everyone. To modernize and evolve Kennedy Park into a state-of-the-art recreational hub that caters to the
needs of all our residents with a focus on youth sports.
 

The Kennedy Park Renovation Project will expand girls’ softball and give girls’ teams equal playing opportunities. This
space will have the most modern athletic accommodations with proper field drainage, lights, and restrooms.
By adding lights, more tournaments will be played during the summer, increasing the economic impact of the
Weston/Wausau area filling hotels, utilizing restaurants, and not canceling due to weather.
The project includes bringing T-ball back to Kennedy and allowing families to be at one park for games and practices.
The paved walking paths will allow community members to walk safely from field to field, with strollers and
wheelchairs.

The park design has been recently approved, and Phase 1 is under construction. This grant would allow Field 2 to
begin as soon as possible, enhancing cost savings. The project is a collaboration between the Village of Weston
Parks & Recreation Committee/Department, the Community Foundation of North Central Wisconsin, D.C. Everest
Youth Baseball, JV Baseball, Everest Fastpitch, JV Softball, and Everest Youth Hockey. The recent completion of
Greenheck Turner Community Center and the tournament activity have created excitement for upgrading the park
adjacent to the center. The shared goal from collaborative youth groups has led us to this exciting opportunity. 



Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority 
P.O. Box 1486 Wausau, WI 54402 ● Phone 715-355-8788 ● Fax 715-359-2306 ● www.visitwausau.com

HOTEL INFORMATION 
Has contact been made with any area hotels? Yes  

If not, can the CVB assist with securing your hotel accommodations? Yes

EVENT INFORMATION 

Total Number of Room Nights:
Average Length of Stay:
Estimated # of Guests per room: 

Proposed Event Location/Facility:

Has the facility been secured?

Number of Teams Expected:

Number of Participants Expected:

# Of Teams/Participants from outside 90 Miles:

Estimated Number of Family & Friends per participant:

Number of local teams:

Number of local participants: 

Date

Day

Rooms 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 

The DC Everest Youth Baseball Organization (DCEYB) is a non-profit established in 1960. All coaches, board members, and supporters are
volunteers whose mission is to support, organize, manage, teach, and develop high-quality baseball players while learning the benefits of
teamwork and sportsmanship. We aim to be an affordable youth baseball program and constantly improve every aspect of our program to
benefit every player, parent, family member, coach, and visitor. Players are encouraged to volunteer throughout the year, teaching a strong
work ethic, responsibility, pride, and representing our community. The league hosts camps, clinics, games, and tournaments throughout the
year.
 
With more than 500 youth in our program, we rely on volunteer coaches and a strong partnership with the Village of Weston to play the
majority of games and practices at Kennedy Park, on Alderson/Alta Verde Street. This park has been the heart of our community, a place
where families gather, friendships are forged, and memories are made. The park is immediately adjacent to the new Greenheck Turner
Community Center. DCEYB has a strong relationship with Everest Fastpitch Softball, D.C. Everest JV Baseball, and JV Softball.

Kennedy Park, Weston, WI, on Alderson/Alta Verde Street.

Yes

If we expand to five fields, we could potential host up to 40 teams per weekend. 

40 X 12 480 players per weekend 

Historically teams have traveled from all over WI, including Eau Claire, Rhineland,
Madison, Milwaukee, Green Bay, Door County and UP team as well.

each player brining 2.5 spectators equalling 1,200 people per weekend. 

We invite teams from Wausau, Plover, Point, Rapids, Antigo our own DCE

This year we have eight travel teams with 14 kids each totaling 112 athletes. 

This year we are hosting three home tournaments,  last year we hosted four.  There are six more weekends available to host tournaments if
we were to expand fields and include lights. 

Average 10 per team 
2 nights

2.5

100 100



Wausau/Central Wisconsin Sports Authority 
P.O. Box 1486 Wausau, WI 54402 ● Phone 715-355-8788 ● Fax 715-359-2306 ● www.visitwausau.com

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
The Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention and Visitors Bureau’s Sports Authority Fund is designed to assist local, regional
and national sports organizations in hosting their events in Wausau/Central Wisconsin. 

This application must be filled out completely and returned to the Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention & Visitors 
Bureau (CVB) prior to the event date for review by the Sports Authority Advisory Committee and approval by the CVB 
Board of Directors. 

Additional Criteria for Applicants to note: 

Application Acknowledgement 
The signature below acknowledges that the above information is true to the best of my knowledge at the signing of this
application. I understand that Information deemed inaccurate or misrepresented could result in a denied application or
loss of event funding. I have read the policies and procedures noted above. Funding is not guaranteed by the submission
of this application. I understand that a final report on the event must be submitted within 60 days of the completion of
the event. 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Any event seeking funding from the Sports Authority must hold the event in one of the communities represented
by the Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention & Visitors Bureau.
All area hotels must have an opportunity to submit a room block proposal through the CVB sales lead system in
order for an applicant to receive Sports Authority funding.
If the event is a bid event, please submit all bid documents, including an award letter if applicable, with your
application.
There is a limited amount of funding available. Applications will be competitive. The following criteria are
important to the successful funding of an application:

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Total economic impact generated by the event
Total room nights generated by the event
Type and distribution area of media coverage
Potential for future growth of the event
Potential as a step to hosting additional events or larger tournament
Sponsorship Benefits Received
Community Support

New events may be funded for up to three (3) years. Applicants are required to provide a matching dollars
investment into the event that will increase by 25% each year unless room night production increases by 25%.
At the conclusion of the event, the CVB requires a detailed report outlining the estimated attendance, room
night production, positives and negatives of the event, and plans for the future. Upon receipt of this report,
the remaining 15% of the allocated funding will be released to the applicant. Failure to submit this report
within 60 days of the conclusion of the event will cause applicant to forfeit any remaining monies awarded
and will prevent the applicant/organization from receiving future funds.

Event Representative: 
Printed Name: Date: 

Jim Olafson, Youth President 

March 2, 2025Jim Olafson, Youth President 

JAO









Are you a business owner or an individual passionate
about leaving a lasting legacy? Consider investing in the 

future of Kennedy Park through naming rights.

Any donation over $500 will be recognized in print, website, and on a
large donation plaque • Donations can be made in 3 year installments
Naming rights for fields begin at $500,000 • Naming rights for fields

and large items over $12,000 will be honored for 30 years or the
lifetime of the structure, whatever comes first 

WE ALL HAVE A PART
TO PLAY IN THE NEW ERA 

OF KENNEDY PARK!



• 1 central concession stand $2.2 mill
• 5 back stops each at $40,000
• 5 sets of dugouts $60,000 per set
• 5 sets of lights $300,000 each
• 5 scoreboards $30,000 each
• 5 sets of fencing $67,000 each
• 3 turf fields $120,000 - $275,000

• Field 1 - turf softball $921,000 (built into 
the hill, to be built first) 

• Field 2 - turf softball $809,000 (built second 
without moving Jones 1 & 2) 

• Field 3 - grass baseball $103,000 (built over 
football field, without moving the Big Field) 

• Field 4 - grass/dirt softball $642,000 
(need to relocate Jones 1 & 2) 

• Field 5 - grass baseball $1.4 million 
(need to relocate Jones 1 & 2) 

• 5 sets of bleachers at each field $30,000 each
• 5 sets of foul poles $12,000 each
• 10 bullpens each at $13,000
• 6 batting cages $6,000 each
• Hockey boards $30,000
• Hockey shelter to cover concrete $510,989
• Concrete for hockey ice $150,000
• Tables, chairs, shade coverings, 

trees for shade options starting at $5,000 

STEP UP TO THE PLATE:

A HOME RUN FOR WESTON:

Ready to make a difference? 
Donate now by scanning the QR code below.
Your gift will help create a Kennedy Park that 

will be appreciated by generations to come.

Friends of Kennedy Park is a collaboration between the Village of Weston Parks & Recreation Committee/Department,
the Community Foundation of North Central Wisconsin, D.C. Everest Youth Baseball and JV Baseball, 

Everest Fastpitch and JV Softball, Everest Youth Hockey, and YOU!
DCE Youth Baseball Park Project Fund is a component fund of the Community Foundation of North Central Wisconsin.

Weston, WI • westonwi.gov/kennedyparkrenovation





For generations, Kennedy Park has been the heart of our community, a place where families gather,
friendships are forged, and memories are made. At the heart of Weston, it’s time for Kennedy Park to
receive the love and attention it deserves. 

We are thrilled to announce the launch of our capital campaign to revitalize Kennedy Park. With a bold
goal of raising $14.5 million, we aim to transform this beloved space into a state-of-the-art recreational
hub that caters to the needs of all our residents. This upgraded park will become a tournament-style
facility, enhancing Weston’s and Central Wisconsin’s economic impact while hosting state and regional
competitions. 

What happens when we all play our part? There will be more grand slams on new baseball and softball
fields, more tricks performed in an expanded skatepark, new walking paths, and more playgrounds to
enjoy, not to mention batting cages, modern shaded areas at the Aquatic Center, a new outdoor hockey
rink, and additional parking to accommodate everyone. This renovation will be completed in the Village of
Weston park immediately adjacent to the new Greenheck Turner Community Center, a catalyst for
community tournaments and an economic impact leader. These are just a few of the exciting
enhancements planned for Kennedy Park. Your generous support will be instrumental in making this vision
a reality. By investing in Kennedy Park, you are investing in the future of our community. 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

Bylaws of the Wausau/Central Wisconsin 
Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 

 
Article I. General 

Section 1. Name. The name of the Corporation, herein called "Corporation" shall be the 
Wausau/Central Wisconsin Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. 

 
Section 2. Location. The principal office for the transaction of business of the Corporation shall 
be in Marathon County, Wisconsin. 

 
Section 3. Registered Agent. The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the 
State of Wisconsin a registered agent as required by the Wisconsin Non-Stock Corporation Law 
relating to domestic non-stock corporations. The registered agent's address may be, but need 
not be, identical with the principal office in the State of Wisconsin, and the registered agent may 
be changed from time to time by a resolution of the Board of Directors and the filing of a 
statement with the Wisconsin Secretary of State pursuant to the provisions of the Wisconsin 
Statutes. 

 
Section 4. Limitation of Methods. The Corporation shall observe all local, state and federal 
laws which apply to a non-profit organization which is exempt from Federal income tax as 
defined in Section 501 (c) (6) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 
Article II. Purpose 

The purpose of the Corporation is to promote Wausau and Central Wisconsin as a convention 
and tourist destination and to assist municipalities and other entities contracting with the 
Corporation in promoting tourism and community events. 

 
Article Ill.   Board of Directors 

Section 1. Role of Directors. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its 
Board of Directors. Board meeting attendance will be in accordance with the authorized number of 
board seats. 

 
Section 2. Number, Term and Qualifications. The authorized number of members of the 
Corporation's Board of Directors may be no more than 18. In the event of the addition of or 
deletion of an area municipality the board member numbers will be adjusted to correctly 
represent the communities represented. Board members must maintain primary residence in 
Marathon County, Wisconsin. 

 
Government: There shall be one Government Board Director member seat available to 
each of the municipalities that contracts tourism services with the Corporation. This 
Board seat shall be filled by the highest elected municipal leader of the contracting 
municipality. If the highest elected municipal leader declines Board membership and fails 
to appoint another elected official to serve as a Board member, a municipality's Board 
seat will remain vacant until such time as an eligible elected municipal official agrees to 
serve on the Board. A municipality may appoint a senior staff member to represent the 
municipality, but this person shall be approved and/or removed from the seat by the 
corporation board. A condition precedent to becoming and retaining a Government 
Board Director seat is that the municipality has a current contract with the Corporation 
for tourism services. 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

Lodging Industry: There shall be at least five (5) Board members who own, operate, or 
hold a senior level position at lodging facilities located within the central Wisconsin 
region. A condition precedent to becoming and retaining a Lodging Industry Board of 
Director seat is that there is a current contract between the lodging facility's municipality 
and the Corporation for tourism services and that the Lodging Industry Board member 
currently owns, operates, or holds a senior level position at the lodging facility. 

 
a. At-Large: There may be at least_eight (8) at large representatives from other tourism- 

related industries and/or other business owners or operators. (Current or Retired} 
 

b. Terms. Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for a two (2) year term. 
 

Section 3. Nominations. Each year, the current Board President shall appoint an elected official 
or designated appointee to the Nominating Committee whose purpose shall be to nominate 
new candidates for the Board of Directors of the Corporation whenever vacancies occur. A 
ballot of nominees shall be prepared and distributed to all current Board members along with a 
list of all Directors whose terms are expiring or who are vacating their seats on the Board for any 
reason. The Nominating Committee shall secure the consent of all candidates prior to their 
inclusion on the ballot. 

 
Section 4. Elections. Directors shall be elected by a majority vote. 

 
Section 5. Resignation, Removal and Vacancies. A director may resign at any time by giving 
written notice to the Executive Director of the Corporation, who shall advise the Board of 
Directors of such resignation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, or, 
if no time is specified, then upon receipt of the notice. A director may be removed from office 
by action of a majority of the members then comprising the Board. A vacancy or vacancies in the 
Board which occurs for any reason, including an increase in the authorized number of directors, 
may be filled by the action of the majority of Board members in keeping with the specified 
qualifications set forth in Article 111, Section 2. 

 
Section 6. Meetings. The Board of Directors shall meet not less than once per calendar quarter. 
All meetings shall be called by the President of the Board or by any three (3) Board Members 
Upon five (5) days' notice via email or ordinary mail. Agenda and Board Packet will be sent to 
Board members at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
a. Waiver of notice. Any members of the Board of Directors may waive notice of any 

meeting and the attendance at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of any 
such meeting, except where a member of the Board attends the meeting for the 
express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is 
not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted, nor the purpose 
of any meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice of waiver of such meeting. 

 
b. Quorum. A quorum for conducting business at any meeting shall be fifty-one percent 

(51%} of the Directors then holding office and the votes of a majority of the Directors 
present at the meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the 
Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there shall be less than a quorum 
present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any 
such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have 
been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further 
notice. 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

c. Attendance. The office of any Board member shall be automatically vacated after 
such Director has failed to attend 50% of Board of Directors meetings in a calendar 
year or missed three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors without an 
excused absence. Attendance via Video Conferencing is acceptable. 

d. Special Meetings/Meetings or When Board Approval Vote Needed. 
At times there may be a matter that requests a special meeting or vote by the board. 
When this matter arises the actual meeting confirmation can be taken place via 
electronic means. Electronic means are and not limited to, Email, Text Messaging, 
Conference Calling or by direct telephone. All directors need to be notified of such 
meeting at least 24 hours prior to such meeting. A Quorum is needed for any passage 
or vote. In the event a board member is unable to attend, that board member may 
appoint another current board member to cast their proxy vote on their behalf with 
electronic means listed above as proof. 

 
Section 7. Committees. The President of the Board with the approval of the Board of Directors 
shall appoint such administrative, standing and project committees as are deemed necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of the Corporation. These committees shall include but not be limited to an 
Executive Committee, a Personnel & Finance Committee and a Nominating Committee. 
Committees shall consist of at least one elected municipal official. These committees shall 
report to and operate under the authority and power delegated by the Board of Directors and 
these bylaws. A committee chair shall be appointed by the President of the Board or by the 
individual committees at the President's option. Committee meetings may be called at any 
time by the Board President or by the committee chair, and with whatever frequency is 
required in order to fulfill their responsibilities. The committee chair shall have the option to 
have minutes taken at all committee meetings. The Executive Director shall serve an as Ex- 
Officio member of all committees. Committees shall consist of at least 3 members. 

 
a. Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the President, Vice 

President, Treasurer, Secretary and a at Large Executive Member of the Board of 
Directors. The purpose of the Executive Committee shall be to act on behalf of the full 
Board only in case of an emergency. Actions taken by the Executive Committee shall 
be ratified by the majority of the Board of Directors at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting. The Executive Director Job description and salary shall be reviewed 
annually in the 4th quarter, along with a comprehensive annual job review. 

 
b. Personnel/Finance Committee. The role of the Personnel & Finance Committee shall 

be to discuss and formulate proposals for matters affecting the Corporation's budget or 
financial welfare. Actions taken by the Personnel/Finance Committee shall be ratified by 
majority of the Board of Directors at the next regularly scheduled meeting. This 
committee shall have at least three (3) members. One (1) Government, one (1) Lodging 
and one (1) At large member. 

 
c. Nominating Committee. The purpose of the Nominating Committee shall be to prepare 

a ballot of nominees for vacancies on the Board of Directors, and to likewise nominate 
candidates for the seats of Board Officers each year. The nominating committee shall 
notify and gain the consent of those nominees and present them to the Board for 
elections when vacancies occur on the Board and at the last meeting of the fiscal year 
for the Officers. This committee shall have at least three (3) members. One (1) 
Government, one (1) Lodging and one (1) At large member. 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

Section 8. Conflict of Interest. The Corporation recognizes that its Government Board members are 
also representing the interests of their individual municipalities, and, at times, there are issues presented 
at Board meetings that may be contrary to the interests of their municipality. However, all members of a 
Board of Directors still owe a duty to act in good faith and fair dealing in conducting the Corporation's 
business and to do their best to carry out the purposes of the Corporation as they are stated in the 
Corporation's By-Laws. All information that is created by the Corporation and provided to Board 
members, whether verbal or written, shall remain private and confidential. Any information may only 
become public with the approval by the Board, its President, or the Executive Director. To the extent 
any Board member believes their duty to the Corporation conflicts with their duty to the municipality orto 
some other entity to which they belong, they must immediately advise the Board, and excuse 
themselves from the meeting. If the Board member feels that a conflict of interest cannot be resolved 
with their continued presence on the Board of Directors, the Board member must resign. 

 
Article IV. Officers 

Section 1. Specified Officers. The principal officers of the Corporation shall be President, Vice 
President, Treasurer and Secretary. All such officers shall be elected from within membership of 
the Board. The election of such officers shall take place at the regularly scheduled meeting of 
the Board of Directors in any calendar year based on nominations presented by the Nominating 
Committee. 

 
Section 2. Term of Office. Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for a two (2) year 
term. Officers of the Corporation shall serve for a period of two (2) years or until their respective 
successors have been duly elected. 

 
a. President. The President of the Corporation shall serve as Chairman of the Board, 

presiding at all of its meetings, and shall perform all duties commonly incident to such 
office. The President shall serve as Chairman of the Executive Committee. With the 
approval of the Board of Directors, the President shall sign all deeds, contracts and 
other instruments affecting the operation of the Corporation or any of its properties, 
except in those cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly 
delegated by the Board of Directors to some other officer or agent of the Corporation. 

 
b. Vice President. The Vice President of the Corporation shall act in the absence of the 

President, and in doing so, shall possess all the powers of the Chair. 
 

c. Treasurer. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall be responsible to oversee and 
manage the finances of the Corporation and to see that all receipts and disbursements 
of funds are in compliance with its annual budget and the direction of the Board of 
Directors. Such funds shall be kept on deposit in financial institutions or invested in 
such a manner as is approved by the Board of Directors. Checks are to be signed 
according to policy set forth in the bylaws. The Treasurer shall cause a bimonthly 
financial report to be made to the Board and shall facilitate an annual audit to be 
completed by May 31st of each year of the Corporation's finances by a qualified certified 
public accountant in accordance with generally acceptable accounting and auditing 
standards and procedures. 

 
d. Secretary. The Secretary of the Corporation shall keep minutes of all Board meetings, 

whether special or regular, attendance records, see that all notices are duly given in 
accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by Law, be custodian of 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

the corporate records and shall perform such other duties as called upon by the 
President. Secretary may have the assistance of a note taker for meetings. 

e. Executive At-Large Member. The Executive At-Large Member serves as the fifth 
member of the Executive Committee. This individual represents the entire organization, 
offering a broad, organization-wide perspective. The Executive At-Large Member actively 
participates in decision-making, contributing to the Executive Committee’s strategic 
choices and ensuring that the interests of the whole organization are considered. 

f. Executive Director. The Executive Director shall be the chief administrative and 
executive officer responsible for administration of the business and daily operations of 
the Corporation in accordance with the policies and regulations of the Board of 
Directors. The Executive Director shall be responsible for hiring, discharging, directing 
and supervising all employees. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the 
preparation of an operating budget covering all activities of the Corporation, subject to 
approval of the Board of Directors, and shall also be responsible for all expenditures 
within the approved budget allocations by the first of December each year. The 
Executive Director shall serve as secretary to the Executive Committee and cause to be 
prepared notices, agenda and minutes of the meeting for the Executive Committee. The 
Executive Director shall serve as advisor to the President and shall assemble 
information and data and cause to be prepared special reports as directed. 

 
g. Removal of an Officer. Any officer elected by the Board of Directors may be 

removed by the Board of Directors, whenever in its judgment the best interests of the 
Corporation will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to 
the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment shall 
not of itself create contract rights. 

 
h. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, 

disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the 
unexpired portion of the term. 

 
i. Officers elected by the Board of Directors shall put the best interest of the 

Corporation first and have such powers and perform such duties as hereinabove 
described. 

 
j. Officers elected by the Board of Directors (President, Vice President, Secretary and 

Treasurer) shall be reimbursed for expenses occurred while representing the 
Corporation at meetings and other functions of business. Mileage expense will be 
compensated at the federal per mile rate established at that date. A minimum of 20 
miles must be met to qualify for expenses. Approval shall be made by majority vote 
of the Executive Committee Members (President, Vice President, Treasure, 
Secretary) and Executive Director. Mileage reimbursement must be submitted to 
the Director of Operations within 30 days of travel. 

 
Article V. Finances 

Section 1. Funds. All money paid to the Corporation shall be placed in a general operating 
fund. Funds unused from the current year's budget must be placed in a reserve account as 
approved by the Board. 

 
Section 2. Disbursements. Upon approval of the budget, the Executive Director is authorized to 
make disbursements not to exceed $10,000. Unbudgeted amounts in any amount needs to be 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

approved by the Board of Directors before disbursement.  
 

Section 3. Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of this Corporation shall be the calendar year. 
 

Section 4. Budget. Prior to the end of the Corporation's fiscal year, its Board of Directors shall 
approve a tentative annual operating budget, setting forth all anticipated revenues and 
expenses. The budget shall be approved by majority vote of the Board. 

 
Section 5. Financial Statements. A financial statement shall be presented by the Treasurer or 
other designated agent of the Corporation showing the financial condition of the Corporation. 
This statement shall be presented to the Board of Directors at their regular meetings. An 
annual audit shall be conducted by a Certified Public Accountant, or as frequently as the Board 
deems necessary. In addition, an independent Certified Public Accountant shall prepare all 
income tax or information returns required to be filed with the Internal Revenue Service and 
the State of Wisconsin with regard to the activities of the Corporation during such year. All 
financial statements of the Corporation shall at all times be available for inspection at the 
offices of the Corporation. 

 
Section 6. Bonds. Officers and employees of the Corporation shall, if required by the Board of 
Directors, give bonds for the faithful discharge of their duties in such sums and forms and with 
such certainties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Board of Directors shall 
provide for payment of the premiums on any such bonds by the Corporation. 
Section 7. No Income to Individuals. No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall 
inure to the benefit of or be distributable to a private individual within the meaning of Section 
501 (c) (6) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, but the Corporation shall be authorized and 
empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and 
distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in these bylaws. 

 
Section 8. Dissolution. Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, any remaining funds after 
paying or making provision for payment of all of the Corporation's liabilities, shall be distributed 
to one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific or 
philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors as defined in Internal 
Revenue Code Sections 501 (c) (3), 501 (c) (4) or 501 (c) (6). 

 
Article VI. Corporate Seal 

Section 1. Corporate Seal. This Corporation may utilize a corporate seal. 
 

Article VII. Indemnity 
Section 1. Action Not in Name of Corporation. The Corporation shall indemnify any person 
who was or is a party or threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or 
completed action, suit or proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative 
other than an action by or in the right of the Corporation by reason of the fact that such 
person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving 
at the request of the Corporation as a director, trustee, officer, member, employee or agent of 
another Corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses, 
including attorney's fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if such 
person acted in good faith and in a manner he/she reasonably believed to be in or not 
opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or 
proceeding, 
had no reasonable cause to believe such person's conduct was unlawful. The termination of 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of 
nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that: (a) the person 
did not act in good faith and in a manner which the person reasonably believed to be in or not 
opposed to the best interests of the Corporation; and (b) with respect to any criminal action or 
proceeding, the person had reasonable cause to believe that their conduct was unlawful. The 
indemnification provided herein shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, the indemnification 
provided in Secs. 181.04-181.053, Wis. Stats 

 
Section 2. Action in Name of Corporation. The Corporation shall indemnify any person who 
was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed 
action or suit by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of 
the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or 
is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, trustee, officer, member, 
employee or agent of another Corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise 
against expenses, including attorney's fees, actually and reasonably incurred by such person in 
connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit if such person acted in good 
faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best 
interests of the Corporation and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any 
claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for 
negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duty to the Corporation unless and only to 

the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon 
application that, despite the adjudication of liability but in view of all circumstances of the case, 
such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which such court 
shall deem proper. The indemnification provided herein shall be in addition to, and not in lieu 
of, the indemnification provided in Secs. 180.041-180.053, Wis. Stats. 

 
Section 3. Authorization of Indemnification Under Section 1or 2. Any indemnification under 
Section 1or 2, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the Corporation only as authorized 
in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee 
or agent is proper under the circumstances because such person has met the applicable 
standard of conduct set forth in Section 1or 2. Such determination shall be made: 

By the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who 
were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding; or 
If such a quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable, a quorum of disinterested 
directors so directs, or by independent legal counsel in a written opinion. 

 
Section 4. Advances for Expenses. Expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred in defending a 
civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final 
disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as authorized in the manner provided in Section 4 
upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to 
repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that such person is entitled to be 
indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this Article. 

 
Section 5. Non-exclusive. The indemnification provided by this article shall not be deemed 
exclusive of any other rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under Chapter 181, 
Wis. Stats. or under any bylaws, agreement, vote of disinterested directors or otherwise, both as 
to action in any such person's official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding 
such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee 
or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, and personal representatives of such a 
person. 

 



V-3-Podvin Final 11/2017  

Section 6. Insurance. The Corporation may, upon resolution of its Board of Directors duly 
adopted, purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, 
employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a 
director, trustee, officer, employee or agent of another Corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust 
or other enterprise against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person 
in any such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not the Corporation 
would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under this provision of the 
Corporation's bylaws. 

 
Article VIII. Amendments 

Section 1. Implied Amendments. Any action taken or authorized by the Board of Directors 
which would be inconsistent with the bylaws then in effect but is taken or authorized by 
affirmative vote of not less than the number of directors required to amend the bylaws so that 
the bylaws would be consistent with such action, shall be given the same effect as though the 
bylaws had been temporarily amended or suspended so far, but only so far, as is necessary to 
permit the specific actions so taken or authorized. 

 
Section 2. Express Amendments. These bylaws, or any portion thereof, may be amended or 
new bylaws adopted by action of the Board at any regular meeting, or any special meeting 
called for that purpose, provided at least five (5) days' notice of the proposed amendment or new 
bylaws has been sent to the members of the Board of Directors. Any such amendment shall 
require approval by majority of the members present for the Board meeting expressly noticed for 
such purpose. 

 
 
 

Board President: Date 
 

 
 
 

Executive Director: Date  
 
 

NOTICE AMENDMENTS 
1. These amended bylaws approved by vote of the Board of Directors on the 15th day of 

December 2021. 
Section 6 - Amendment (d) Date of Board Vote 7/29/19 

 
2. These amended bylaws approved by vote of the Board of Directors on the  day of 

November, 2019. 

 
Section 8 - Article IV Amendment (i) Date of Board Vote 7/29/19 



 
 

227800 Snowbird Ave | Rib Mountain, Wisconsin 54401-5828 
(715)842-0983 | Fax (715)848-0186 | office@ribmountainwi.gov | www.ribmountainwi.gov 

 
 

 
March 10, 2025 
 
 
 
Tim White, Executive Director 
Wausau/Central Wisconsin Visitor Bureau 
P.O. Box 1486 
Wausau, Wisconsin 5442 
 
 
RE: CONCERNS REGARDING RIB MOUNTAIN TOURISM PROMOTION AND AGREEMENT RENEWAL 
 
Dear Tim: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to address our concerns regarding the promotion of the Village of Rib Mountain in all the 
activities and materials initiated by the Wausau/Central Wisconsin Visitor Bureau.  
 
It starts with the lack of strong social media presence for not only Rib Mountain but the entire region. Social media is 
everchanging and the Visitor Bureau needs to be on top of the latest platforms. Facebook, Instagram and YouTube are 
fine, but it must be taken to the next level in order to capture attention from all age demographics. There is also a lack 
of local events acknowledged via social media. This can be easily resolved by the Visitor Bureau tagging Rib Mountain 
posts about upcoming events. Stock photos used via social media erroneously identifying Rib Mountain needs to be 
corrected as well. We request the Visitor Bureau create an app for visitors as this is done in other tourist areas.  
 
The Visitor Bureau’s website is another concerning area that needs immediate attention. Rib Mountain’s logo is 
outdated, which you are aware of. Additionally, the website’s calendar is not user-friendly and does not include local 
events, making it less effective as a tool for visitors.  
 
Lastly, Rib Mountain continues to be underrepresented in marketing materials. This has been discussed in previous 
conversations, but the issues persist. Rib Mountain acknowledges the marketing of the broader “Wausau” area, but it is 
critical to properly identify the specific locations of events/attractions. For example, if an event is taking place at Nine 
Mile Recreation Area, the marketing should specify that this is located in Rib Mountain. Posts that identify ski Granite 
Peak in Wausau are unacceptable. It should say, “Come visit Wausau including Granite Peak located in Rib Mountain”. 
This approach should be applied consistently to all communities, including Weston and Scholfield.  
 
The Commission believes that it is vital to have these concerns resolved before our upcoming renewal of the contract. 
We formally request this letter be on the agenda for the next Visitor Bureau Board meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Rib Mountain Tourism Commission 
 
Cc: Wausau/Central Wisconsin Visitor Bureau Board Chair 

mailto:office@ribmountainwi.gov
http://www.ribmountainwi.gov/


1

Jodi Maguire

From: Tim White
Sent: Monday, March 10, 2025 5:30 PM
To: Gaylene Rhoden
Cc: Greg Fisher
Subject: Re: Rib Mountain Tourism Commission Board

Gaylene, 
 
Thank you for reaching out - currently I am at the Wisconsin Governor's Conference on Tourism until 
Wednesday. 
 
 
Thank you for the feedback - that is helpful. 
I will review this more thoroughly then - however, I can tell you that: 
 

1. I did change the Village's new logo last Thursday.  You might have to refresh or clear your caches. 
2. For social media, there is much that you don't see on our social media platforms, because we 

advertise outside of the area. We do organic posts on Facebook, Instagram, YouTube, Tik Tok.  We 
have paid campaigns on Meta, Google, etc - we sent you that report from December about the 
results. I am not sure what you consider a strong media presence as well as what "take it to the 
next level" means.  For example, many of our Instagram posts are Reels and Stories, not always 
just a static post.   

3. If you can send me examples of apps that other areas are using, I would like to see examples to do 
some research.  

4. We have informed the staff that you would like to be tagged when appropriate - and will make 
certain this happens. 

5. We typically don't use stock photos in our socials, so sending me examples would be much 
appreciated.   

6. We always attempt to promote events that visitors would potentially like to see, and avoid things 
that are mostly for locals.  But we will review. 

7. The website's calendar is being reviewed, I will send a separate email showing the difference 
between mobile and laptop.  We've not been told that it's been an issue until now and it's one of 
top three pages that people go to. 

8.  

From: Gaylene Rhoden <GRhoden@ribmountainwi.gov> 
Sent: Monday, March 10, 2025 4:44 PM 
To: Tim White <twhite@visitwausau.com> 
Cc: Greg Fisher <greg.fisher@midwestfamilyskiresorts.com> 
Subject: Rib Mountain Tourism Commission Board  
  
Attached you will find a letter from the Rib Mountain Tourism Commission. 
  



2

Thank you.  
  
Gaylene S. Rhoden, ICMA-CM 
227800 Snowbird Avenue 
Wausau, Wisconsin 54401 
715-842-0983 (Main) 
715-679-8334 (Direct) 
grhoden@ribmountainwi.gov  
www.ribmountainwi.gov  
  
Mission: Serving the Public Making Us the Community of Choice. 
Vision: Rib Mountain will be the premier choice destination for  
safe high-quality living, outdoor recreation opportunities, and  
attractive commerce through planned growth, strategic  
partnerships, and leveraged resources.  

 
  
  



From: Tim White
To: Gaylene Rhoden
Cc: Tim Van De Yacht; Greg Fisher; Jamie Polley; Steve Krahn; Nirav Patel
Subject: Mobile to view calendar.
Date: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 8:24:34 AM

Here’s where you click to view the calendar on mobile. Then what pops up. We are looking to see
if we should tweak. 

mailto:twhite@visitwausau.com
mailto:grhoden@ribmountainwi.gov
mailto:timv@ghidorzi.com
mailto:greg.fisher@midwestfamilyskiresorts.com
mailto:jamie.polley@marathoncounty.gov
mailto:skrahn@gassnercompany.com
mailto:nickpatel@sunshinehospitality.biz


Tim White
Executive Director
Wausau/Central Wisconsin CVB
twhite@visitwausau.com
VisitWausau.com
Office: 715.355.8788 
Cell: 715.574.9878

Representing Rib Mountain, Schofield, Wausau, and Weston.

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It
is strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any third party, without a written
consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and
follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.

mailto:twhite@visitwausau.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fvisitwausau.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cjmaguire%40visitwausau.com%7C0dcac08ad1544f32541a08dd60a00dff%7Cf8633ac83cd94a6990780770ba16e673%7C0%7C0%7C638772962738449430%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=BgPR3FjR7nAd3GWBkcs4Aln9VAsRYrOn5T8vM4A0b%2BY%3D&reserved=0


From: Tim White
To: Gaylene Rhoden
Cc: Greg Fisher; Jamie Polley; Steve Krahn; Nirav Patel; Tim Van De Yacht
Subject: Open calendar after click on mobile
Date: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 8:25:29 AM

mailto:twhite@visitwausau.com
mailto:grhoden@ribmountainwi.gov
mailto:greg.fisher@midwestfamilyskiresorts.com
mailto:jamie.polley@marathoncounty.gov
mailto:skrahn@gassnercompany.com
mailto:nickpatel@sunshinehospitality.biz
mailto:timv@ghidorzi.com


Tim White
Executive Director
Wausau/Central Wisconsin CVB
twhite@visitwausau.com
VisitWausau.com
Office: 715.355.8788 
Cell: 715.574.9878

Representing Rib Mountain, Schofield, Wausau, and Weston.

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It
is strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any third party, without a written
consent of the sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and
follow with its deletion, so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.

mailto:twhite@visitwausau.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fvisitwausau.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cjmaguire%40visitwausau.com%7C285d6f45ad1145c2bbaf08dd60a02ee9%7Cf8633ac83cd94a6990780770ba16e673%7C0%7C0%7C638772963289196836%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=H1NeMsaQOBylKKqbSFhfbRBFxHuGqPhx0HHccTgai%2B8%3D&reserved=0





	March 19th Board Meeting Agenda
	January 22nd Meeting Minutes
	P&L Jan-Feb 2025 CVB
	Sheet1

	P&L Jan-Feb 2025 SA
	Sheet1

	CVB Balance Sheet Feb 2025
	SA Balance Sheet Feb 2025
	2025 Final Budget for WCWCVB & Sports Authority
	Sheet1

	Tim's Board Report March 2025
	Hmong Wausau Festival 2025 Grant Application
	Wausau Hmong Festival 2025 Grant Application
	DESCRIPTION OF EVENT
	EVENT HISTORY
	EVENT INFORMATION
	HOTEL INFORMATION
	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	Additional Criteria for Applicants to note:
	Application Acknowledgement

	2025 Budget HWF
	Sheet1

	HWF Profit and Loss 2024 Revised

	Friends of Kennedy Park Renovation Project 2025
	By Laws CVB -Updates
	Article I. General
	Article II. Purpose
	Article Ill.   Board of Directors
	d. Special Meetings/Meetings or When Board Approval Vote Needed.
	Article IV. Officers
	Article VI. Corporate Seal
	Article VII. Indemnity

	Article VIII. Amendments
	NOTICE AMENDMENTS
	December 2021.
	November, 2019.


	Village of Rib Mountain's Chain PDF
	Village of Rib Mountain's Letter to Tim White on concerns
	Email 1 from Gaylene
	Email 2 Response Back
	Email 3 Response Back
	Email 4 Gaylene


	GRANT APPLICATION 1: Hmong Wausau Festival
	GRANT APPLICATION 2: July 26 - 27, 2025
	GRANT APPLICATION 3: Hmong American Center, Inc.
	GRANT APPLICATION 4: 39-1459824
	GRANT APPLICATION 5: Yee Leng Xiong
	GRANT APPLICATION 6: 1109 N 6th Street, Wausau, WI 54403
	GRANT APPLICATION 7: 715-348-6214
	GRANT APPLICATION 8: yeelengxiong12@gmail.com
	undefined: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	Date: 
	Day: 
	MondayRooms: 
	TuesdayRooms: 
	WednesdayRooms: 
	ThursdayRooms: 
	FridayRooms: 
	SaturdayRooms: 
	SundayRooms: 
	Total Number of Room Nights: 
	Average Length of Stay: 
	Estimated  of Guests per room: 
	Event Representative: 
	Printed Name: 
	Date_2: 


